1.  Re:  Addendum C, 3.2.  What size IBM compatible mainframes does DISA currently have?  What are the total MIPS or the model numbers of the mainframes? 
Approximately 16,000 MIPS.



 
 

2.  Re:  Addendum C, 3.2.  How many of the 5,000 servers are Unix?  How many total UNIX processors (e.g. there are some servers with multiple processors) are there?
A: Assume a 50/50 split of UNIX and Windows OS based server and some servers have multiple processors. No further break out will be provided.

 
 

3.  We believe your intent is that the Government recognizes that configurations change quickly and you need to track vs. simply inventory.  This vendor suggests you change this requirement to either change the word “real time” to “near real time” or, since it is a desirable, to state that the ability to keep information up-to-date and timely is important and that vendors should discuss how they would accomplish this both in their answers to the specification and will be evaluated on their degree of meeting the intent of this requirement.
A: Addendum C, 6.1.12 refers to changes made inside the repository database and not to the function of auto discovery

 
 

4.  Re: 3.2 of the SOW - In order to definitely be able to say that our 
solution will discover the specific elements of the DISA IT enterprise that DISA requires, we need a more specific list of what assets DISA requires to be captured.  Noting the information given in 2.0 of the SOW,
we did not see a listing of the specific hand-held device types that are required to be discovered.
A: As this is a best value solicitation of a COTS product, products that offer more auto-discovery detail and or capability may considered a better value

 
 

5.  Re:6.1.1 - please provide one or more examples of the level of 
specificity required in the information to be discovered and managed for each hardware and software asset.  For example – does DISA want to know what the server machine type is, or specifically how much memory and disk is on the machine?  For software, is version required?  Is patch level required?
A: As this is a best value solicitation of a COTS product, products that offer more auto-discovery detail and or capability may considered a better value

 
 

6.  Re: 6.8 - Will SNMP be available in the DISA network to allow agentless asset discovery?  Are there any other network-related considerations which might enable or prohibit agentless asset discovery and management to take place in the envisioned DISA network environment?
A: Reference Addendum “C” SOW ATTACHMENT A – REFERENCE DOCUMENT

 
 

7.  Re:7.5 – please provide an outline of DISA's preferred architectural strategy for this system.  Is mainframe-based preferred or mid-tier-based?
  Is agentless discovery preferred, or agents?  Will agents be allowed 
on the discovered machines to track configuration changes?  This is asked because in some prior DISA RFPs, agentless technology was required
A: As indicated in Addendum “C” 7.5.1    The vendor shall provide a conceptual recommendation of an architectural environment, to support DISA’s objectives outlined in Section 2.0 (Project Background) and Section 3.0 (Objectives) of Addendum C.

 
 

8.  We are attempting to clarify the instructions documented in Addendum “A” as to whether we need to prepare one master PDF document containing Sections 1 – 4 (as mentioned on page 1 of Addendum “A”) with sub-topics mentioned in Addendum “A” on page 3 through the middle of page 9, then refer back to these Sections/Sub-topics from each of the tabs in the supplied spreadsheets Addendum “D” and Addendum “F”?
Or, does DISA prefer hot links to separate documents for each numbered item in the spreadsheets that requires further clarification?
A:  Proposals may be submitted in whichever format best promotes readability and understanding.



 
 

9.  Factor 1 – Technical Capability: SOW Paragraphs 6.1 – 6.9 and 7.9, Subfactor 1.1:  Desired Technical Capabilities”  What is “customizable” auto discovery?  Does the Government want the ability to add their own signatures to the software knowledge base, say to track GOTS applications?  Does this mean the Government desires the ability to create/customize their own discovery capabilities to find things that may not be supported in the vendor’s product?
A: As this is a best value solicitation of a COTS product, products that offer more auto-discovery detail and or capability may considered a better value

 
 

10.  Addendum C, 3.2.  What are the 58,000 hardware devices?  Are these PC’s and servers?  Are they components of or devices attached to the 15,000 PC’s and 5,000 servers? Are the 15,000 PC’s and 5,000 servers part of these 58,000 hardware devices or in addition to?
Clarification of asset breakdown.
20 U.S. site locations

7 large sites (4,500 assets per site)
13 small sites (2,000 assets per site)
57,500 total assets

Asset Breakdown:
Servers (5,000)
PCs (15,000)
Server/PC peripherals (18,000)
Communication/Network (10,000)
Storage (5,000)

 
 

11.  Re:  Addendum C, 6.5.6.   This vendor assumes that “metering” means to track software usage on all Windows, Unix and mainframe platforms.  Is this correct?
A: Yes

 
 

12.  Re:  Addendum C, 6.5.6.   This vendor interprets “soft” metering mean to track software usage “hard” metering means to be able to stop execution of administrator-specified applications or versions.  Is this correct?
Hard metering. Actively limit the number of concurrent licenses being used.
Soft metering. Report under- or over-usage of a software product.

 
 

13.  Following the transformation of local staffing, will new assets be routed through the SMCs or delivered directly to the local sites?  
A: NOT DEEMED APPLICABLE TO SOLICITATION.  ADM: Assets may be delivered to a central location or to local sites.

 
 

14.  What specific type of database is used by Aperture (ODBC,Ole, etc)
A: PROPRIETARY – ASSUME INTERFACE TO BE IMPORT EXPORT ONLY

 
 

15.  Describe the level of integration required between Aperture and the proposed solution
A: NONE INTERFACE ONLY NO INTEGRATION

 
 

16.  Can you provide the specific locations and asset allocations?
A: NOT DEEMED APPLICABLE TO SOLICITATION

 
 

17.  What is the DISA definition of "asset". (i.e. "7 large sites 4,500 assets”).
A: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COMPONENTS

 
 

18.  What detail is expected for data returned from auto discovery of mainframe devices?
A: AS THIS IS A BEST VALUE SOLICITATION OF A COTS PRODUCT, PRODUCTS THAT OFFER MORE AUTO-DISCOVERY DETAIL AND OR CAPABILITY MAY CONSIDERED A BETTER VALUE.

 
 

19.  Could you please provide additional detail for this requirement? (What systems, what type of reconciliation, etc.)
A: AS THIS IS A BEST VALUE SOLICITATION OF A COTS PRODUCT, PRODUCTS THAT OFFER A GREATER RECONCILIATION CAPABILITY WITH A BROADER AMOUNT OF SYSTEMS MAY BE CONSIDERED A BETTER VALUE.

 
 

20.  Does the solution need to interface with an existing purchasing system, or replace it completely?
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “C” 2.1.2

 
 

21.  How do the proposed solutions need to interface/co-exist with existing government solutions like Wide Area Workflow?
A: WIDE AREA WORKFLOW IS NOT APPLICABLE TO THE SOLICITATION.  REFERENCE ADDENDUM “C” 4.0

 
 

22.  In what manner should “negotiation status” be addressed or recorded?
A: AS THIS IS A BEST VALUE SOLICITATION OF A COTS PRODUCT, PRODUCTS THAT OFFER THE BETTER CAPABILITY OF ADDRESSING NEGOTIATION STATUS MAY BE CONSIDERED A BETTER VALUE.

 
 

23.  Could you please provide a sample pre-populated form for us to view? What is the expected output format for the forms? (pdf, etc…)
Form is irrelevant.  Functional capability to do so is desired. 



 
 

24.  Could you provide additional information pertaining to the storage devices in use, SAN devices, NAS devices, etc?
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “C” 3.2

 
 

25.  Page. 1, paragraph 1 states clarification questions are due Sunday, 6/21/05.  We assume the government meant Tuesday, June 21st?
A: YES

 
 

26.  Section 2.0 instructs offerors to use the ADM Consolidated Offeror Responses.xls to respond to the SOW requirements, including a description of their Training Strategies.  However, there are no training requirements in the referenced .xls file.  SOW Section 7.6 states a training plan is due 15 days post award.  Please clarify what, if any, training requirements should be addressed in the RFP response and where they should be addressed
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “C” 7.6 TRAINING STRATEGY AND 7.6.1 -7.6.7

 
 

27.  Section 2.0 instructs offerors to complete the “ADM Consolidated Offeror Responses.xls.”  However, several sections require detailed descriptions and in some cases screen shots of our solution. The response document is an excel spreadsheet which places physical limitations (# of characters) on the volume of data supported in each cell.  Will you permit narrative responses in Adobe format so that requisite text and graphics can be properly depicted? 
 If the government cannot grant this, please advise how data overflows for a cell should be handled.  
A: YES NOT TO EXCEED 5 PAGES PER PRODUCT AND 1 PAGE PER FUNCTION                               A: SEE ABOVE

 
 

28.  Section 2.0.  Where a “Description of how the desired capability is met” has a page limit for each line item, please clarify how “a page” will be measured, given that the cell provided for the response is one of six columns in a spreadsheet.  
 May column widths be adjusted?  May Adobe be used for this narrative portion of the response?
A: YES REFERENCE FROM THE .XLS TO OTHER DOCUMENTS IS ACCEPTABLE.

 
 

29.  Section 3.0. Technical Specifications.  Each of the response worksheets contain a column requesting reference to existing documentation for each response.  However, several sections, including Coexistence and Additional Mandatory Technical Requirements, have to do with DISA specific contractual items or installing software on the same system as existing software, for which there may not be referencable documentation.  Further, providing copies of reference documentation will result in huge file sizes and certainly surprass DISA’s 3MB ceiling.  We request the column asking for supporting documentation be deleted from all worksheets.  Otherwise, please clarify how offerors are to address these types on non-referencable questions and how reference material is to be submitted to DISA
All references to a 3 MB file size are deleted, thus, allowing reference documentation to be submitted.  Such reference documentation will not be counted against the 100-page proposal limitation.



 
 

30.  Section 4.0 requests past performance for three (3) implementations.  The referenced response spreadsheet contains line items for five (5) references.  Should offerors assume three (3) references is the correct number?  Given the multiple columns requesting descriptions (Relevancy, Recentness, Performance, Schedule/Budget), and considering the character limitations inherent in Excel cells, may offerors provide their past performance response in Adobe?
A: YES, OFFEROR SHALL PROVIDE THREE OF SIMILAR SIZE AND SCOPE, BUT MAY PROVIDE ADDITIONAL              

A.YES                                    

 
 

31a. CLIN X003 is for hardware components required by the solution.  Does DISA want a complete configuration (servers, desktop PCs, etc) or only those components required by the software solution to run on DISA's current environment?
31b. Should the proposed hardware solution be sized for a production system (250 users) or a demonstration system (2-4 users)?
A: THOSE REQUIRED FOR THE SOLUTION                                                                      A: PRODUCTION

 
 

32.  Does DISA anticipate installation to occur at more than one site?  If so how many locations?  Will installation occur simultaneously or sequentially? 
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “A” 6.0

 
 

33.  DISA is requesting an “enterprise-wide ITAM solution” providing “robust capabilities” as presented in the SOW.  We believe 5 days notice is insufficient time to properly process DISA’s test plan, develop test and demonstration scripts, and stand up our enterprise solution fully configured to highlight DISA specific functionality.  To squeeze these preparation activities into such a short timeframe would be more of a disservice to DISA in limiting what offerors might be able to put together.  The short time frame suggested by DISA would limit the amount of functionality that an Enterprise solution provider could present and put DISA at risk of making a selection based on insufficient information
A: NO REFERENCE ADDENDUM “A” 6.0

Should we say “DISA is requesting a software solution that offers the greatest functionality while providing minimal implementation difficulties  Due to internal resource demands, DISA is unable to allocate more time for the Proof of Concept (POK) testing.



 
 

34.   Would DISA consider allowing offerors to bring in their own demonstration environment to perform all assessment requirements?  If so, would LINUX be acceptable?
A: YES

 
 

35.  What are the hours that the offeror will have access to the demonstration system during the entire 10-day product assessment?
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “A” 6.0 DISA will provide the following information 5 working days prior to the onsite assessment

 
 

36.  Will the offeror have operating system access to the demonstration system during the entire 10-day product assessment?   
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “A” 6.0 DISA will provide the following information 5 working days prior to the onsite assessment

 
 

37.  Will the offeror be able to schedule jobs, such as backups, to be run during the evenings of the 10-day product assessment?
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “A” 6.0 DISA will provide the following information 5 working days prior to the onsite assessment

 
 

38.  Will the government provide personnel for hardware, operating system, and network support during the entire 10-day product assessment?
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “A” 6.0 DISA will provide the following information 5 working days prior to the onsite assessment

 
 

39.  Will a device with Internet access be available for use during the entire 10-day product assessment for the purposes of accessing the offeror’s support site?
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “A” 6.0 DISA will provide the following information 5 working days prior to the onsite assessment

 
 

40.  Is the offeror required to actually demonstrate its capability to interface with DISA mandatory database/systems as defined in Section 2.1 of the SOW?  If so, will individuals supporting these systems (FAMIS, TMS, DPAS, and Aperture) be available to assist?
A: NO. DEMONSTRATION IS NOT A REQUIREMENT.



 
 

41.   Please provide more detail on the requirement for a two-way data feed to Defense Property Accountability System (DPAS) referenced in Item 6.2.5 of the SOW.  In particular, which specific data elements are passed to and from DPAS and the Asset Data Management Solution?
A: NO. OFFEROR SOLUTION WILL BE EVALUATED ON ITS ABILITY TO INTERFACE WITH DPAS AS STATED IN ADDENDUM “C” 6.0

 
 

42.  Please provide more detail as to the requirement to generate a live feed to Aperture referenced in Item 6.2.6 of the SOW.  Section 2.1.3 of the SOW is unclear as to the current interaction between Aperture and IACMS.  What specific data elements will be passed to Aperture from the Asset Data Management Solution?
A: NO. OFFEROR SOLUTION WILL BE EVALUATED ON ITS ABILITY TO INTERFACE WITH APERTURE AS STATED IN ADDENDUM “C” 6.0

 
 

43.  Contract Information:  Please advise what information DISA expects in the Subcontracting Plan. 
A: Offerors must submit their proposed utilization of small business subcontracting, as required by the Small Business Adminstration.



 
 

44.  Section 10.0 Overall Best Value Selection.  “The government reserves the right to award without discussions and may accept an offer prior to its specified expiration date…”  What is the expiration date of this procurement?  Is there an associated validity period?
A: The acceptance period of a proposal may be limited by the offeror.  DISA requests all offers be valid until award is made.  However, an opportunity to submit a final proposal will be afforded several days before award (the “final proposal” allows for pricing changes; not technical changes).



 
 

45.  What is the total number of purchase line items processed by the application during a 12-month period?  Purchase lines are counted as all line items on an approved requisition? 
A: ESTIMATE 10% GROWTH PER YEAR OVER THE NEXT FIVE YEARS

 
 

46.  Is there a breakdown of who the Application Users are, for example what job roles they fall into? 
A: NO

 
 

47.  How many application users will access the system to track assets?  All 250 application users or a subset? 
A: OFFEROR PROPOSALS SHALL BE BASED ON 250 APPLICATION USERS.

 
 

48.  How many application users will access the system to service trouble tickets? 
A: OFFEROR PROPOSALS SHALL BE BASED ON 250 APPLICATION USERS.

 
 

49.  How many application users will enter Asset Orders into the system? 
A: OFFEROR PROPOSALS SHALL BE BASED ON 250 APPLICATION USERS.

 
 

50.  How many application users will enter Contract information into the system? 
A: OFFEROR PROPOSALS SHALL BE BASED ON 250 APPLICATION USERS.

 
 

51.  How many field technicians are there assisting with trouble tickets.
A: OFFEROR PROPOSALS SHALL BE BASED ON 250 APPLICATION USERS.

 
 

52.  Section 6.1.16 - the solution provides the capability to compare asset repository data against internal and external sources. What information/data elements will the solution need to compare against internal and external sources?  
A: DATA IS IRRELEVANT FUNCTIONAL CAPABILITY TO DO SO IS DESIRED.

 
 

53.  Section 6.1.17 - the solution provides the capability to reconcile data between different systems. This requirement implies that some date will be stored in multiple applications.  Please elaborate on the specific types of data which will be reconciled.
A: DATA IS IRRELEVANT FUNCTIONAL CAPABILITY TO DO SO IS DESIRED.

 
 

54.  Section 6.1.5 - Why does the solution need the capability to “create additional tables in the repository”?  What is the underlying requirement?
A: REQUIREMENT IS IRRELEVANT FUNCTIONAL CAPABILITY TO DO SO IS DESIRED

 
 

55.  Section 6.2.4 - the solution provides the capability to interface with the Remedy Trouble Management System (TMS) as defined in Section 2.1.4 ADM Addendum C Statement of Work.  Will the Remedy Trouble Management System remain in use or will it be replaced during this effort?
A: REMEDY IS NOT SLATED TO BE REPLACED

 
 

56.  Section 6.4.2 states the solution provides the capability to produce/update current and future fiscal year spend plans based on actual and projected contract cost data.  Please elaborate on the process to produce/update current and future fiscal year spend plans.
A: CURRENT PROCESS IS NOT RELEVANT FUNCTIONAL CAPABILITY IS DESIRED.

 
 

57.  Section 6.5.6 - the solution provides soft and hard metering of software usage and provides alerts based on defined thresholds. Please clarify what is meant by metering.  What are some examples of metering?  Are the thresholds based on licensing, sign on, concurrent usage, etc.?
A: OFFERORS PRODUCTS OFF THE SHELF CAPABILITIES ARE DESIRED.

 
 

58.  Section 6.7.4 - the solution provides the capability to create data wizards that prompt the user through complex processes. Please provide examples of data that would be set up using wizards.  Is this concept related to workflow set up or usage?
A: YES, WORKFLOW AS WELL AS END USER GUIDES

 
 

59.  Would any Operating System that meets the Common Criteria Evaluation certification be an acceptable platform for one or more of the system components, i.e. Red Hat Linux 3.0?”
A: REFERENCE ADDENDUM “C” ATTACHMENT A – REFERENCE DOCUMENT

 
 

60a) Please provide details on the government’s implementation approach and expectation as it relates to the use of external consultants.  It is unclear how the services vendor will be expected to provide onsite support for such things as implementation, data conversion, tool customization and interface development if they will not have direct system access
A: DISA IMPLEMENTATION TEAM WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PRODUCT IMPLEMENTATION. B: REFERENCE ADDENDUM "A" BASE YEAR CLIN X005.

 
 

60b) Does the government currently use a methodology for application implementation and system integration?  If so what is it? 
A: NOT DEEMED APPLICABLE TO SOLICITATION

 
 

60c) Will the services vendor be permitted to use its preferred methodology to assist in implementing the solution? 
A: NO DISA CS WILL USE ITS METHODOLOGY FOR IMPLEMENTATION

 
 

60d) Will the government have it’s own project team?  If so, please advise what the structure of the project team will be and their level of expertise.
A: DISA CS IMPLEMENTATION TEAM WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PRODUCT IMPLEMENTATION. TEAM INFORMATION IS NOT RELEVANT TO THE SOLICITATION.

 
 

60e) What type of hardware implementation support is the government requesting?
A: NONE

 
 

60f) What types of processes and tools does the government use for release management of application software?
A: NOT DEEMED APPLICABLE TO SOLICITATION

 
 

60g) Can you describe the methods currently used for integration of the systems that require integration?
A: NOT DEEMED APPLICABLE TO SOLICITATION

 
 

61.  CLIN 005 Hardware – Please clarify what hardware DISA expects offerors to propose?  Is it only those components that the software requires to function beyond DISA existing infrastructure or is DISA requesting complete configurations to stand up the solution (e.g., server and desktop hardware) be proposed?
A: Offeror to propose complete configuration requirements to stand up solution

 
 

62.  The header of the worksheets within this document is labeled Addendum E and has a different contract number.  Please clarify.
A: CORRECTED

 
 

63.  The numbering scheme of the Requirements column on each worksheet does not match the SOW section.  Please clarify.
A: CORRECTED

 
 

64.  In reference to solicitation number HC1013-05-R-2008, I would like to know if there are any security clearance requirements.  Any information would be appreciated. 
Security clearance will be reviewed on an as needed basis by DISA CS. Security clearance is not a requirement of the offerors solicitation proposal.

 
 

65.  Attachment C, 6.2.8 - Does DISA have an existing barcode scanner solution?
Yes

 
 

66.  Attachment C, 6.6.4 - Does DISA require physical signatures, or simply a confirmation that the forms were prepared (through the use of an audit trail or password confirmation) by someone in authority to complete the forms?
Both

 
 

67.  Addm F - The worksheets included in Addendum F do not correspond to the required response sections described in Addendum A.   Please clarify the response requirements.
New Addendum F should answer this

 
 

68.  There is a 100 page limit for response.  Does this limit apply to our entire submission?  Or is this the limit for responding to the "Tech Req - Des Cap" worksheet only?
Offerors proposals are to be limited to 100 pages. Reference material/documentation used to support proposals is not included in the 100 page limit.

 
 

69.  Column 5 in the "Tech Req – Des Cap" requires supporting documentation or a reference.  If an explanation exceeds the capacity of the Excel spreadsheet, can we capture our response in an associated Word document?
A:  Yes.

 
 

70.  Where are the application users based?
All Sites

 
 

71.  How many users are supported in the planned environment?
See SOW paragraph 2

 
 

72.  Attachment C, 3.2 20 Site locations – what is the level of network connectivity to these sites?
Question too ambiguous to be able to provide an answer.

 
 

73.  Attachment A, page 1 indicates that questions are due not later than Sunday, 21 June 2005. June 21 is a Tuesday; therefore is the deadline for questions on Sunday, 19 June 2005 or Tuesday, 21 June 2005? 
Tuesday, 21 June 2005

 
 

74.  Block 8 of the solicitation cover states that the RFP is due at 11:59 PM 06 July 2005. Attachment A, page 1 states that proposals are due no later than close of business July 6, 2005. If proposals are due at 11:59 PM, is that local time at Scott AFB in Illinois? 
DITCO’s automated document system does not allow for “COB” in Block 8; consequently, 11:59 was put in.  Whatever the date (now intended to be 7/18/05), the proposals are due close of business that day, regardless of company location.  This vagary is intentional and meant to preclude rejection of an offer due to internal or external internet problems.



 
 

75.  Attachment A, page 6, paragraph 3.4 requests that offerors propose hardware and software required to support operation of the solution, based on notional environment. Does DISA desire minimum specifications for the hardware or desired specifications? 
Vendor‘s Recommended specifications.

 
 

76.  Does the Government have a timeframe for the product assessment phase of the evaluation, i.e., within x weeks of downselect?
We intend to begin product assessment as soon as possible after downselect. 

 
 

77.  Attachment C, page 7, paragraph 3.1 states that DISA seeks an “enterprise” license. Given that the proposal also states that the actual numbers may be higher or lower, does enterprise license mean that the Government can move licenses between platforms as long as a specific user/platform amount is not exceeded? Please define “enterprise license.” 
A. Yes

B. B: An Enterprise License is defines as follows “A license to utilize the software anywhere within DISA’s then current enterprise within the scope and other usage requirements defined elsewhere in the SOW.” This definition is consistent with the Government’s intent is to only incur cost when the capacity of the license (quantity purchased) is exceeded based on the unit of issue. 

C. SOW paragraph 5.18 addresses movement of licenses between platforms.

 
 

78.  Attachment C, page 10, paragraph 5.8 provides for right of DISA to install maintenance releases on machines designated for COOP for testing and validation purposes. Does DISA intend to procure separate COOP licenses in the event it is necessary to operate at the COOP site for an extended period?
No.  The requirement remains as stated.

 
 

79.  Attachment C, 4.5.1  Microsoft Terminal Services is listed as an existing network service – does the department use MTS to host 2-tier applications to remote locations?  Is this a standard?
No additional details will be provided.

 
 

80.  The solicitation refers to both MSSQL and Oracle database- is there a standard or preferred database platform?
No

 
 

81.  The solicitation refers to both UNIX and Windows-based servers. Is there a standard or preferred database platform?
No

 
 

82.  Proposals are due no later than Close of Business July 6, 2005.”  The answers to the questions submitted today could possibly affect our proposal response.  The current submission date is two days after a Federal Holiday.  We feel we can adequately incorporate the Government’s answers to questions if we receive the answers by Friday, June 24th.  If the Government takes more than three days to answer questions, would the Government consider an extension of one day for every day it takes to respond to the questions?
Questions relating to this Amendment will be accepted through Close of Business 7/8/05.  Proposals are due COB 7/18/05.



 
 

83.  Addendum A, Instruction to Offerors, Page 2, Section 1 b. states in part, “all spreadsheets shall be submitted in MS Excel Office 2000.”  Can MS Excel 2003 also be used? 
A:  Yes.

 
 

84a. Is the 100 page proposal limit inclusive of all linked files? 
84b. Or, is the 100 page limit for the proposal document and the linked supporting references and documentation are not subject to the 100 page limit? 
84c. Linkages may become corrupted during the upload to the DITCO web site, even if care is taken to ensure all files are in the same directory.  As a backup, is it permissible to submit the proposal on a CD, via overnight delivery, in addition to the primary means of submission to the DITCO web site? 
84d. If delivery of a CD, as a backup is permissible, please provide the mailing address necessary for overnight delivery, as overnight carriers do not deliver to P.O. Boxes. 
Offerors proposals are to be limited to 100 pages. Reference material/documentation used to support proposals is not included in the 100 page limit.

 
 

85.  Addendum A, Instructions to Offerors, Page 3, Section 2.0, Specific Proposal Instructions, states, “The Offeror shall utilize the attached workbook, “ADM Consolidated Offeror Responses.xls” to submit their responses to the Coexistence requirements, the Additional Mandatory Technical Requirements, and the Desired Technical Capabilities, as well as to describe their Architectural and Training Strategies.”  There does not appear to be a tab for Training Strategies in the Addm_F.xls spreadsheet.  Please clarify.  How are offerors to account for Training Strategies using the spreadsheet provided (Addm_F.xls
Added to addm_F.xls 

 
 

86.  Addendum A, Instructions to Offerors, Page 6, Section 4.0, Present and Past Performance, under Column 1, Implementation, states, “Vendor shall provide information (name, customer) of three (3) implementations of similar size and scope to the one outlined in the SOW.”  May we provide more than three Present and Past Performance references? 
YES – but only 3 are required

 
 

87.  Addendum A, Instructions to Offerors, Page 10, Section 6.0, Product Assessment, under Contract Information, states, “Complete Blocks 6a, b, and c of DD Form 254 and submit along with proposal.”  We did not receive a copy of the required DD Form 254.  Would the Government clarify and issue the DD Form 254 if appropriate? 
Form DD0254 will be required for any technical support personnel on an as needed basis by DISA CS. DD0254 is not a requirement of the offerors solicitation proposal.



 
 

88.  Addendum C, SOW, Section 6.1.1 references a “centralized database.”  Addendum C, SOW, Section 6.8 also discusses integrating discovered elements with the “central repository.”  Does this mean that the “centralized database” is the repository for the ownership information and that this database can be integrated with other external databases for reference information (e.g., discovered elements)? 
Central Repository' and 'Centralized Database' could be the same. Depends on the Offerors Architecture Strategy provided to us.

 
 

89.  Addendum C, SOW, Page 13, Section 6.1.21 states, “The solution is LDAP compliant.”  Why is LDAP required for authentication? 
Addendum C, SOW, Page 13, Section 6.1.21 does not state LDAP is required for authentication

 
 

90.  Addendum C, SOW, Page 15, Section 6.5.1 states, “The solution provides the capability to develop, coordinate, monitor, manage, record, and maintain a complete history of configuration change requests.”  Does the current TMS Remedy based system capture and track change requests?”  If so, are approval processes included in the Remedy change request? 
No

 
 

91.  Addendum C, SOW, Section 6.5.6 states, “The solution provides soft and hard metering of software usage and provides alerts based on defined thresholds.”  Please define ‘Soft’ and ‘Hard’ metering.  What is the difference? 
• Hard metering. Actively limit the number of concurrent licenses being used.
• Soft metering. Report under- or over-usage of a software product.

 
 

92.  Addendum C, SOW, Page 16, Section 6.7.3 states, “The solution provides the capability to create approval workflows that include electronic signatures and automatic notifications at each approval level.”  Which specific areas of the Asset Management Lifecycle require the electronic signatures for DISA? 
A: OFFERORS PRODUCTS OFF THE SHELF CAPABILITIES ARE DESIRED

 
 

93. Addendum C, SOW, Page 16, Section 6.7.4 states, “The solution provides the capability to create data wizards that prompt the user through complex processes.”  Please provide an example of a ‘complex process’ that needs to be incorporated into this system
A: OFFERORS PRODUCTS OFF THE SHELF CAPABILITIES ARE DESIRED.

 
 

94.  Addendum C, SOW, Page 16, Section 6.7.5 states, “The solution provides the capability to configure transaction history/audit trails, for example, the history must reflect the action taken by approvers/reviewers.”  Where within the Asset Management Life Cycle System does the Government require the ability to configure these transactions? 
Requirement applies to the offerors applications ability to track any change to an item anytime during an assets lifecycle. IE: If a user changes DISA to Disa the change history would be captured

 
 

95.  Addendum C, SOW, Section 6.8.3 states, “The solution provides customizable automatic discovery of communications devices and their attributes.”  When referring to “communications devices” is the Government referring to Routers, VTC, VoIP, etc.?  Please clarify the term “communications devices.
A: OFFERORS PRODUCTS OFF THE SHELF CAPABILITIES ARE DESIRED

 
 

96.  Addendum C, SOW, Section 6.9.1 states, “The solution should send event messages to one of the following receiving software product’s standard format: Managed Objects Formula or, Tivoli Enterprise Console.”  Please define what is meant by “standard message formats.” 
A FORMAT READABLE BY Managed Objects Formula or Tivoli Enterprise Console

 
 

97.  Reference Addendum C, SOW, Section 7.6.1.  Please provide the different job categories that will need to be trained and the number of students to be trained by job category at each site
A. Addendum C 7.6.1 states clearly that training is required for System Administrators, Security, and End Users.  B. Training is to be quoted based on a total of 15 train the trainers.

 
 

98.  Reference Addendum C, SOW, Section 7.6.2.  If there are no security restrictions, will the Government accept, as an additional training methodology, training using VoIP delivery?
No

 
 

99.  Reference Addendum C, SOW, Section 7.6.4.  Two questions arise: 
99a. How many “Train-the-Trainer” candidates does the Government envision? 
99b. Can the Offeror assume that the “Train-the-Trainer” candidates have experience in training, teaching, and/or content delivery? 
A. Base proposals on training 15 train the trainers.
B. Not relevant to solicitation

 
 

100.  Reference Addm_F.xls and Addendum C, SOW.  The Addm_F.xls file has five tabs.  The first three tabs, Tech Req-Des Cap, Coexist, and Additional Mand Tech Req, appear to refer to Sections 6.0, 4.0, and 5.0, of the SOW, respectively.  However, the numbering convention used in the Tech Req-Des Cap tab refers to Section 4.0 of the SOW, instead of Section 6.0.  Likewise, the numbering convention used in the Coexist tab refers to Section 5.0 of the SOW, instead of Section 4.0.  And, the numbering convention used in the Additional Mand Tech Req tab refers to Section 6.0 of the SOW, instead of Section 5.0.  Finally, there are 26 additional requirements in Section 5.0 of the SOW while the Additional Mand Tech Req tab has space for 30 additional requirements.  Please clarify the apparent inconsistencies. 
Addendum F has been corrected.

 
 

101.  Reference Page 4 of Addendum A, Instructions to Offerors, and Addm_F.xls.  Addendum A gives instructions for completing Column 5, Supporting Documentation or Reference, for both the Tech Req-Des Cap and Coexist tabs.  Does the Government require an actual link to the required references or for the Offeror to simply site the reference in Column 5? 
Site the reference.

 
 

102.  The header data in Addm_F.xls states HC1013-05-R-2010, Addendum "E".  Should this header data state HC1013-05-R-2010, Addendum "F"?  Please clarify. 
Addendum F has been corrected.

 
 

103.  Regarding Addendum C, 3.2.  When the Government states a need for “250 application users”, do this mean that the total number of users who will be accessing or updating the ITAM system will be a maximum of 250, worldwide?  Does this include the number of users who will be using the on-line requisitioning capability discussed in C 6.3 and if not, how many users do you anticipate for that system?
A: OFFEROR PROPOSALS SHALL BE BASED ON 250 APPLICATION USERS

 
 

104.  Regarding Addendum C, 3.2.  What kind of assets are at the 7 large sites (4,500 assets), 13 small sites (2,000 assets)?  Are these PC’s, handhelds, desks or chairs or some other type of non-IT asset.?  If PC’s, are the numbers described in these 7 large sites also included in the 15,000 PC’s or are they in addition to?  
A: The following updated information is supplied: 

Clarification of asset breakdown.
20 U.S. site locations

7 large sites (4,500 assets per site)
13 small sites (2,000 assets per site)
57,500 total assets

Asset Breakdown:
Servers (5,000)
PCs (15,000)
Server/PC peripherals (18,000)
Communication/Network (10,000)
Storage (5,000)
Mainframes (60)
Mainframe peripherals (4,440)


 
 

105.  We assume that except for 6.0, Desired Technical Capabilities, the use of the words “Shall”or “Must” in all addendums denotes a mandatory requirement.  Is this a correct interpretation? 
YES

 
 

106.  Regarding Addendum C, 6.5.6.   This vendor assumes that “metering” means to track software usage on all Windows, Unix and mainframe platforms.  Is this correct?
Yes

 
 

107.  Regarding Addendum C, 6.5.6.   This vendor interprets “soft” metering mean to track software usage “hard” metering means to be able to stop execution of administrator-specified applications or versions.  Is this correct?
Hard metering. Actively limit the number of concurrent licenses being used.
Soft metering. Report under- or over-usage of a software product

 
 

108.  Regarding Addendum F:  “Architectural Strategy, Cell A8 – The Government requests that offeror delineate third party software required”.  Is the interpretation of “third party” any software that is not required to meet any of the mandatory or desirable requirements in Addendums A, B and C?  For example, database software or operating systems?
NO. Third party is any software an offeror uses from another vendor to support their solution

 
 

109.  Regarding Addendum D, Columns C and F.  Should the quantity bid by the vendor reflect the quantities described Addendum C, 3.2 and other areas of Addendum C where a quantity is provided by the Government?  For example, for a software product that is priced per PC unit, can the offeror place quantity 15,000 (per 3.2, “15,000 PC’s”) in Column C, the “per PC” price in Column E and then the multiplied result in Column F would then represent the price for the 15,000 quantity specified?  In this way, as per 3.1, “Actual numbers may be higher or lower”, if, after award, the Government only orders licenses for 10,000 PC’s, would they then order based on the unit price in Column C and multiply by 10,000?   Or for another example, if software is priced per user, should the vendor price the software as Column C “quantity 250” (from 3.2) and then the price per each user in Column E, automatically extending into Column F of 250 times the price in Column E?  If, after award, the Government actually orders a 300 user system, then would the price be determined by multiplying 300 times the unit price? Or, alternatively, is the Government simply asking the vendor to price in Addendum D on a Quantity 1 per CLIN basis, providing quantities in 3.2 as a guideline to help the vendor determine appropriate pricing discounts based on anticipated volume?
Government is asking the vendor to price in Addendum D on a Quantity 1 per CLIN basis, providing quantities in 3.2 as a guideline to help the vendor determine appropriate pricing discounts based on anticipated volume. 

 
 

110.  May past performance of subcontractors be utilized in Addendum E.
No.

 
 

111.  Please confirm that DISA is asking for a FFP on all CLINs except those listed below that are to be bid on a Time & Material basis.• 0005 (Optional CLIN) Technical Support (Not to exceed 1,000 hours) 0007 (Optional CLIN) Travel for Technical Support (Not to exceed $50,000)
TRUE

 
 

112.  The "Properties" on the file called "Addm_F.xls" contains the name Raymond Caruso at American Systems Corporation.   Can you describe this company’s role in this Solicitation?  Our assumption is that American Systems Corporation is a contractor that assisted DISA with the requirements definition and will not be permitted to response to this solicitation as a prime or sub contractor.  Please confirm
Answer: No, the name was inadvertently overlooked in the Addm_F.xls from a prior project. Raymond Caruso and American Systems Corporation have not assisted DISA CS with the ADM requirements.

 
 

113.  Will DISA consider proposals that provide a complete hardware specification, however, do not provide a quotation for hardware or related annual hardware maintenance?
Answer: No, Hardware Components and Maintenance fees are required in the offerors proposals. The Government may or may not purchase hardware from these CLINS. Reference Addendum “A” Base Year.

 
 

114.  The users and assets listed are for the DISA “enterprise” and not just DISA Computing Services
Answer: The users and assets listed are DISA Computing Services

 
 

115.  The assets listed represent the users and assets for the “base contract period” and the 10% annual growth is to be calculated on a compound basis from these numbers.  Also, please confirm that this 10% growth applies to users as well as assets
Answer: Yes to both questions.

 
 

116.  The 6,500 assets across the 20 sites are in addition to the other assets listed? For example this list shows 4,500 assets are at the 7 large sites.  Are any of these assets servers or PC’s that are included the figures shown in those specific categories?
A: Clarification of asset breakdown.
20 U.S. site locations

7 large sites (4,500 assets per site)
13 small sites (2,000 assets per site)
57,500 total assets

Asset Breakdown:
Servers (5,000)
PCs (15,000)
Server/PC peripherals (18,000)
Communication/Network (10,000)
Storage (5,000)
Mainframes (60)
Mainframe peripherals (4,440)

 
 

117.  Of the assets listed, how many have the capability to hold an IP or MAC address?
Answer: Assume All

 
 

118.  Please list all Mainframe operating systems in use today and cite any changes/migrations to same that DISA is planning in the next 3 years
No additional details will be provided.

 
 

119.  How many of the 250 application users will require “concurrent” use of the solution
Answer: Assume All

 
 

120.  Will all 250 application users require equal access to the system?  Specifically, does DISA anticipate the need to have a group of users requiring dedicated licenses while other users need access to the system on a periodic/casual basis?  If so, how many of the 250 will require a dedicated license?
Answer: Assume a 50/50 split for quotation purposes

 
 

121.  Are the System Administrators and Security Personnel included in the 250 application users?
Answer: Yes

 
 

122.  Please provide a detailed description of the communications devices referenced in Addm_C Section 6.8.3.
Answer: Network communications devices such as but not limited to routers, switches, hubs etc…

 
 

123.  With reference to Addm_C “Attachment A – Reference Document”, the following items could not be located on the http://iase.disa.mil/stigs/index.html web site.  Please verify and provide an alternate source location.

• DISA Instruction 630-230-19, Information Systems Security
• DISA Computing Services Security Handbook
Addendum “F” updated with training worksheet added.

 
 

124.  Addm_A1 Section 2.0 implies that the “ADM Consolidated Offeror Responses.xls” file should have a separate worksheet tab for Training Strategies.  If so, please confirm
Addendum “F” updated with training worksheet added 

 
 

125.  Of the 60 mainframes, how many are IBM, how may are Unisys? 
Answer: Assume a 50/50 split for quotation purposes

 
 

126.  Please explain the following statement in Addendum E … “The contract shall provide DISA the right to acquire maintenance using the agreed to licensing methodology for the products provided under this contract by alternative means
DISA understands that the licensing methodology required under this contract may not match any of the licensing methodologies normally offered by the vendor.  DISA does not want to have to re-license or convert the licenses to another licensing methodology in order to acquire maintenance after the term of this contract for those products licensed under the terms of this contract.  Also see SOW 5.18.

 
 

127.  2.1.1 – “The system also contains specific data about communication devices.”
 What specific data is being collected?
No further information will be provided.

 
 

128.  2.1.2 – “Aperture is currently running on  Windows 2000 and a proprietary database.”
 Is the database open or closed (i.e. does it comply with ODBC standards and does 
 DISA intend to make the ODBC drivers available to the successful bidder?
Assume non ODBC compliant.

 
 

129.  FAMIS is currently running on OS930 and Oracle v7.33 as the database.”
Oracle v7.33 is no longer available nor is it supported.  How many licenses for
Oracle v7.33 for OS930 does DISA own, relative to the possibility that the 
successful bidder elects to upgrade it?

OS390 is no longer supported by IBM.  Prior to, or during the contract 
performance period, will DISA be upgrading it to the 64 bit Z/OS1.6 operating 
system?
Old Specification:

FAMIS is currently running on OS390 and Oracle v7.33 as the database.

New Specification at time of award

FAMIS is currently running on Z/OS1.4+ and Oracle v9i as the database.

Current changeover plans will have no OS390 running at time of award.

 
 

130.  What is the inventory breakout at each of the 20 US Site locations, and what ARE the locations?
No further information will be provided.

 
 

131.   Communication/Network is listed as having 10,000.  What is the breakdown, configuration, and location of items/systems which comprise this 10,000?
 
No further information will be provided

 
 

132.  Storage is listed as having 5,000.  What is the breakdown, configuration, and location of items which comprise this 5,000, and where is each located?
No further information will be provided.

 
 

133.  Mainframes are listed as having 60.  Where is each located, and what is each  configuration?
No further information will be provided

 
 

134.  Mainframe peripherals are listed has having 5,000.  What is the breakdown, configuration, and location of these peripherals?
No further information will be provided

 
 

135.  Real Secure Server Sensor – What does this provide? Which servers does it run 
 on?  Does it run on a proprietary OS
Real Secure Server Sensor provides automated, real-time intrusion protection and detection through analysis of logs, etc.

Assume product runs on all platforms and operating systems supported by the manufacture Internet Security Systems.

 
 

136.  4.4- Managed Objects – Is Formula a software package?  If so, which system(s) does it run on?
Assume product runs on all platforms and operating systems supported by the manufacture Managed Objects

 
 

137.  5.2- “Vendors shall provide an enterprise-wide solution and a perpetual license, based on the architecture in the SOW.  Can we propose a new architecture?
Yes, Ref Addendum C  7.5.1&2     Architectural Strategy.

 
 

138.  Vendor maintenance shall include technical support for the current version and  the two preceding versions of each software product in the DISA inventory.
 Please provide the software inventory listing.
 If software vendor no longer supports an older version, will the successful bidder still be required to provide support?
Vendor maintenance is to be for products necessary to fulfill the requirements of the solicitation

 
 

139.  All vendor technical support personnel shall be manufacturer trained and certified.  Not all manufacturers provide training and certification.  Will a competency  exhibited by 1 or more years experience providing support be an acceptable 
substitute?
NO

 
 

140.  Vendors shall provide pricing for hardware maintenance…”
 Can we get a list of all hardware and its location in sufficient time to provide accurate pricing for the maintenance?
Hardware maintenance is to be for products identified by the offeror that are necessary to fulfill the requirements of the solicitation.

 
 

141.  Vendor shall guarantee DISA the right to bring all licenses maintained under this contract up to the same release or version level…”
 Please provide software version levels, installed location, and operating system type for each license covered.
Software maintenance is to be for products identified by the offeror that are necessary to fulfill the requirements of the solicitation.

 
 

142.  “Vendor shall provide a minimum 12 months notice prior to discontinuance of  support for a product.”
 Will we be held accountable to this clause if the original manufacturer/producer of the product does not make this information publicly available in sufficient time for us to provide the 12 months notice?
Yes, 

 
 

143.  “DISA shall have the right to reinstate maintenance for any licenses for which maintenance has not been ordered, upon payment of back maintenance fees……”
 If the software vendor does not allow for this provision, will the offeror still be  held  accountable?
Yes

 
 

144.  The solution provides the capability to interface to automatic discovery tools….”
 What are the automatic discovery tools currently installed on each system to be covered?
None Ref Addendum “C” 3.0

 
 

145.  6.1.14 “The solution provides the capability to enter formulas for automatic  computation/re-computation of contract details…..”
 Please provide the formulas you intend on using.
WE ARE LOOKING FOR COTS SOLUTIONS THAT REQUIRE NO PROGRAMMING BY VENDORS TO THEIR COMMERCIALLY AVAILABLE PRODUCT

 
 

146.  6.1.16 “The solution provides the capability to compare asset repository data against 
 internal and external sources.”
 Please provide a listing of these internal and external sources
A: DATA IS IRRELEVANT FUNCTIONAL CAPABILITY TO DO SO IS DESIRED

 
 

147.  6.1.17 “The solution provides the capability to reconcile data between different systems.”
 Which different systems, and what specific data is exchanged among them?
A: DATA IS IRRELEVANT FUNCTIONAL CAPABILITY TO DO SO IS DESIRED

 
 

148.  6.1.18 “The solution provides an archiving capability that includes all transactions/interfaces to other systems.”
If archiving specific transaction/interface information provides an integrity/security risk, will this requirement be waived for that transaction/interface item?
No, Reference Addendum “C” 7.0

 
 

149.  Solicitation is listed as unrestricted yet there is a size standard of $21 million, can you please explain
The information is provided so the offeror (or subcontractor) can properly identify the size of his business.

 
 

150.  Paragraph 3.1 of Addendum A limits the Technical Requirements response to 100 pages yet no limits are listed for Paragraphs 3.2 and 3.3.  What are the page limits for these responses or are they to be included in the 100 pages
Offerors proposals are to be limited to 100 pages. Reference material/documentation used to support proposals is not included in the 100 page limit.

 
 

151.  Page 10 of Addendum A requires that DD Form 254 be submitted with the proposal.  This form was not included in the RFP package, will one be provided
Form DD0254 will be required for any technical support personnel on an as needed basis by DISA CS. DD0254 is not a requirement of the offerors solicitation proposal 



 
 

152.  In Addendum C, Paragraph 2.1.2 you state that CORAS "...provides alerts for pending maintenance renewals...” Can you please clarify what types of alerts are generated?
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided. Offerors solution will be evaluated on the ability to generate alerts.

 
 

153.  Is the current Aperture to IACMS integration based on ODBC, SQL or XML/SOAP Aperture API? (Reference Addendum C, Paragraph 2.1.3) 
A: ASSUME INTERFACE TO BE IMPORT EXPORT ONLY

 
 

154.  Are the current feeds from CORAS and IACMS to TMS (Remedy) using standard Remedy components and API's, or are they custom-developed using Remedy's ARS (Action Remedy System) architecture?  If the development is custom, is there technical documentation available? (Reference Addendum C, Paragraph 2.1.4) 
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided.

 
 

155.  Will any of the systems outlined in Addendum C, Paragraphs 2.1.6 - 2.1.8 be replaced by this solution or be reviewed for replacement as a result of this solution?
No

 
 

156.  TBAR does not currently have integration with IACMS.  Is TBAR integration a requirement of the new system? (Reference Addendum C, Paragraph 2.1.8)
Offeror product is not required to interface with TBAR.

 
 

157.  What type of inventory is stored in Tivoli?  What event messages should be communicated to Tivoli Enterprise Console:  network discovery of new servers, desktops or other devices?  SNMP traps or other alarms?  (Reference Addendum C, Paragraphs 2.1.6, 6.9.1
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided

 
 

158.  In Addendum C, Section 3.0 you state, "The acquired solution must also support such asset lifecycle functions as budgeting...” Can you please clarify what part of the budgeting process the solution must support?
A: AS THIS IS A BEST VALUE SOLICITATION OF A COTS PRODUCT, PRODUCTS THAT OFFER MORE BUDGETARY CAPABILITY MAY BE CONSIDERED A BETTER VALUE.

 
 

159.  Paragraph 3.2 of Addendum C lists 250 application users.  What does this number actually represent?  Based on the number of PCs, it does not appear that you only have 250 users
Offer proposals shall be based on 250 application users.

 
 

160.  Do any of the Co-existence products already run Oracle databases?  (Reference Addendum C, Paragraph 4.0)
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided.

 
 

163.  HP OpenView is listed as an application for co-existence, but not integration.  Should the provided solution leverage OpenView auto discovery and management capabilities? (Reference Addendum C, Paragraph 4.1)
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided.

 
 

164.  In Addendum C, Paragraph 6.1.3 you state "The solution provides the capability to interface to automatic discovery tools for servers, communications devices, mainframes...” This appears to contradict Section 6.8, which states that the solution must provide these tools.  Please clarify.
Reference: Addendum “C” 1.0 Scope

 
 

165.  Given that the integration with DPAS should be 2 way (accepting asset information from DPAS valued at $2,500 or higher, as well as feeding asset information from the proposed system to DPAS), is there any available documentation on what DPAS currently sends to IACMS or what it expects from IACMS? (Reference Addendum C, Paragraph 6.2.5)
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided

 
 

166.  What barcode scanner technology is currently being used? (Reference Addendum C, Paragraph 6.2.8) 
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided.

 
 

167.  Can you please provide a detailed explanation as to the functionality requested in Paragraphs 6.3.1 and 6.3.2?
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided.

 
 

168.  For auto discovery do all servers, personal computers, communications devices, storage devices and mainframes support standard SNMP MIB's? Is it acceptable to install agents on devices for discovery and monitoring? (Reference Addendum C, Paragraph 6.8) 
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided.
B: Yes

 
 

169.  Paragraph 7.9 of Addendum C states “All technical support personnel… must have minimum IT sensitivity Level II.”  Can you provide more information about this security level?
Vendor personnel asked to assist the DISA team with installation and implementation on-site will be escorted by DISA personnel, if long term on-site or access to DISA systems is deemed necessary DISA will inform the vendor of security clearance requirements

 
 

170.  Since the Requirement #s listed in Column (1) of Addendum E do not correspond to the actual paragraph numbers in the SOW (i.e., 4.1 should be 6.1, 5.1.1 Hewlett Packard should be 4.1), we wanted to verify that this is the most current version of RFP.
Addendum “F” corrected.

 
 

171.  Since the primary solution for this RFP will be a software one, why can’t a commercial software license agreement be incorporated into this contract (as is stated in Addendum E)?
Commercial software license agreements conflict with DISA requirements.

 
 

172.  Has a timeline of integration for the CORAS and IACMS applications been developed?  
A: NOT DEEMED APPLICABLE TO SOLICITATION

 
 

173.  Will the procurement solution be expected to interface with SPS or the new DITCO EBM solution
A: NOT DEEMED APPLICABLE TO SOLICITATION

 
 

174.  In the product demonstration phase, is there an expectation to work with “DISA” data, or only to demonstrate functionality?
Demonstrate functionality

 
 

175.  Is there a consideration to integrate the IACMS and CORAS applications into the solution with modifications?
Reference: Addendum “C” 2.1.1, 2.1.2

 
 

176.  6.1.13 - Who will be modifying the input screens?  
- Will this need to be saved as a template
DISA Implementation Team, yes

 
 

177.  6.1.14 – Are the examples of the types of formulas necessary?  i.e. formulas based on maintenance level/type, MIPS, LPARS etc.
WE ARE LOOKING FOR COTS SOLUTIONS THAT REQUIRE NO PROGRAMMING BY VENDORS TO THEIR COMMERCIALLY AVAILABLE PRODUCT

 
 

178.  6.1.16– Is there a list of the internal & external sources?
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided

 
 

179.  6.1.17 – Is there a list of systems?
A: No additional details about our current functionality will be provided.

 
 

180.  Under 3.0 – Objectives. “Additionally, the acquired solution must interface to existing external systems/repositories, for example, Help Desk and Aperture, to create workflow and resource efficiencies.”   
A) What is the desired interface? 
B) Do you desire to have a data connector that populates one database from the other, or access the data of one from another?  
C) Sometimes the term “interface” is overused, and I want to clarify what you mean by this term.
No additional details about our current functionality will be provided. Offerors solution will be evaluated on the ability to generate alerts.

Offeror to propose technical solution.

Interface:

A boundary across which two systems communicate. An interface might be a hardware connector used to link to other devices, or it might be a convention used to allow communication between two software systems. Source: The Free On-line Dictionary of Computing, © 1993-2005 Denis Howe

 
 

181.  Under 4.0 Coexistence, is it acceptable for the proposed solution to replace one of the systems listed, rather than coexist with it
No.

 
 

182.  Under 5.2 Vendors shall provide an enterprise-wide solution and a perpetual license, based on the architecture in the SOW

A) To clarify, what do you mean by a perpetual license?  
B) Do you mean that you do not have to pay recurring fees for the license you purchased, that DISA shall acquire upgrades when they are released at no additional cost, or something different?
A - As defined in Attachment B, a perpetual license is “Legal authority to utilize hardware/software products which never expires and/or without the requirement to purchase additional vendor maintenance.

B - Yes.  2. Upgrades are part of maintenance and would be provided by the vendor if maintenance were acquired.

 
 

183.  Under 5.12 Vendor shall provide pricing for software maintenance support, to include all software upgrades, for up to 5 years.

A) Are these upgrades of the current version, or upgrades to future versions?  Obviously this is a “best guess” based on past pricing trends - is this acceptable?
A: Upgrades are for both current and future versions, reference Addendum “C” 5.9

 
 

184.  Under 6.2.7 The solution provides the capability to interface with the software distribution system for inventory reconciliation and software license management as defined in…

A) Can the proposed solution replace the existing software distribution system
A: AS THIS IS A BEST VALUE SOLICITATION OF A COTS PRODUCT, PRODUCTS THAT OFFER MORE CAPABILITY MAY BE CONSIDERED A BETTER VALUE.

 
 

185.  Under the Excel Spreadsheet entitled "Addendum To 52.212-1, Technical Requirements and Desired Capabilities, SOW Paragraph 6.0 (Addendum F)", please explain exactly what DISA is looking for under Column (5) Headingand the related Footnote (4) shown above the columns
Reference Footnote 4 - self-explanatory

 
 

186a.  :Since the vendors are required to provide a thorough description of how each listed requirement is to be met under Column 6 plus additional explanations as needed, do vendors still need to reference their particular document names, sections, etc. as stated in Column 5 and Footnote 4 

186b:  Or will the detailed vendor responses in Column 6 be sufficient?
A: Yes

B:No

187.  Sending technical and/or reference product manuals along with the respective RFP responses could potentially result in responses being difficult to transmit or vendors exceeding the defined threshholds (i.e. number of pages) for RFP responses
Offerors proposals are to be limited to 100 pages. Reference material/documentation used to support proposals is not included in the 100 page limit.




188.  I am responding to a DITCO RFP that requires meeting requirements of DISA
Instruction 630-230-19 Information Systems Security, July 1996.  Can you please send me a copy/point me to this doc on the web? 

DISA Instruction 630 is no longer available and is in the process of being updated.

